
BEFORE THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

INRE:

CNX Marine Terminals, Inc.
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Baltimore, Marylarld 21224,
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CONSENT AGREEMENT

Preliminary Statement

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

This Consent Agreement ("CA") is entered into by the Director of the Office of
Enforcement, Compliance, and, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III
("EPA" or ";Complainant") and the CNX Marine Terminals, Inc., pursuant to Section
309(g) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.c. § 1319(g), and Sections 3008, 9006,
and 9007 o~the Solid Waste Disposal Act, commonly referred to as the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste
Amendmen~s of 1984 (collectively referred to hereafter as "RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. §§ 6928,
6991e, and 699lf, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment lof Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits
("consolidard Rules"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. .

This Consent Agreement and the attached Final Order (jointly referred to as the
"CAFO") silnultaneously commences and concludes this action pursuant to Section
22. 13(b) orthe Consolidated Rules of Practice.

General Provisions

For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set
forth in this fAFO.

Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations and conclusions of
law set forthl in this CAFO, except as provided in Paragraph 3, above.

Respondent agrees not to contest EPA's jurisdiction with respect to the execution of this
I .



6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

II.

12.

B.

CA, the issrnce of the attached Final Order. or the enforcement of the CAFO.

For the purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives its right to
contest the ~llegations set forth in this Consent Agreement and any right to appeal the
accompanying Final Order, or any right to confer with the Administrator pursuant to
RCRA Section 600 I(b)(2), 42 V.S.c. § 6961(b)(2). ;

Responden~ consents to the issuance of this CAFO and agrees to comply lith its terms
and conditions.

Respondent shall bear its own costs and attorney's fees.

Respondent certifies to EPA by its signature herein that it is presently in compliance with
the ProvisiorS of RCRA Subtitles I and C and the CWA referenced herein.

The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding upon Complainant and Respondent and
any successbrs, assigns, or other entities or persons otherwise bound by law.

This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all applicable
provisions of federal, state or local law; nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or
detenninati&n of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit; nor does this
CAFO cons'titute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of RCRA, the

I :
CWA, or any regulations promulgated thereunder. I

EPA's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

Pursuant to Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6926(b), and 40 C.F.R. Part 271,
Subpart A, the State of Maryland has been granted final authorization to administer its
hazardous ~aste management program, set forth at the Code of Maryland Regulations
("COMAR'p, Title 10, Subtitle 51 et seq., in lieu of the federal hazardous waste
management program established under RCRA Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-693ge.

I

The State of Maryland Hazardous Waste Management Regulations ("MdHWMR")
originally ~ere authorized by EPA on February II, 1985, pursuant to Section 3006(b) of
RCRA, 4211J.S.C. § 6926(b). Revisions to the MdHWMR set forth at COMAR, Title 26,
Subtitle 13,lwere authorized by EPA effective July 31, 2001 and September 24, 2004.
The provisi@ns of the revised federally-authorized program have thereby become
requiremen~sof RCRA Subtitle C enforceable by EPA pursuant to Sectio,,! 3008(a) of
RCRA, 42 lU.S.C. § 6928(a). .,

Effective JU~le 30,1992, pursuant to Section 9004 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § ~99IC, and 40
C.F.R. Part f81, Subpart A, the State of Maryland was granted final authorization to
administer a state underground storage tank management program ("Maryland

I .
Authorized pST Management Program") in lieu of the Federal underground storage tank
manageme t program established under Subtitle I of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6991-699Ii.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Through thir final authorization the provisions of the Maryland Authorized UST
Management Program became requirements of RCRA Subtitle I and are, accordingly,
enforceab1e!by EPA pursuant to Section 9006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6991e.

In accordan~e with Sections 3008(a)(2) and 9006(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 u.s.L §§
6928(a)(2) and 6991e(a)(2). EPA has notified the Maryland Department of the
Environmerlt of EPA's intent to enter into a CAFO with Respondent resolving the RCRA
violations sbt forthherein.!

I

Respondent is the owner and operator of the facility located at 3800 Newgate Avenue,
Baltimore, Maryland (the "Facility"). !

Respondent is a person within the meaning of:

A. Section 311(a)(7) and 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1321(a)(7) and 1362(5); and
,

I

B. Section~ 1004(15) and 9001(6) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6903(15) and 9991(6).
, I

The Facilit borders and is adjacent to Patapsco River and Janney Run which are "waters
of the Unitetl States" within the meaning of Section 502(7) of the Act, 33 U.S.C.I .
§ 1362(7), 4

1
0 C.F.R. § 232.2, and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. !

I
, I

Section 301 a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1311 (a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant
from a poin~ source to waters of the United States except in compliance with, among
other thingsl a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") pennit
issued purslant to Section 402 of the C~A, 33 U.S.c. § 1342. ii

An NPDES pennit is required for discharges of pollutants, including discharges of stonn
water associated with "industrial activity." Section 402(p) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c.
§ 1342(p), ahd 40 C.F.R. §§ 122.21 and 122.26. I

Section 402Ja) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1342(a), provides that the Administrator of EPA
may issue p~nnits under the NPDES program for the discharge of pollutants from point
sources to "!aters of the United States. The discharges are subject to specific tenns and
conditions as described in the pennit. , !

Maryland Dlpartment of the Environment ("MOE") received authorizatioJ to administer
I ,

the NPDES p~rogram in September 1974. !

;, i

MOE issued a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Pennit N~. MD0055824
("Pennit"), t[ the CNX Facility on October 1,2003 with an expiration dat~ of September
30, 2008. Bpcause the Respondent submitted a pemlit renewal application fonn on
March 30, 2006, the permit was administratively extended. The pennit was renewed by
MOE on Fe Imary 1, 201 land is set to expire on January 31, 2016. 'I

I

'i
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23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

The CNX NjPDES Permit authorizes stormwater discharges only from outfalls identified
in the Permit as 002, 003, and 004 and only in accordance with specified effluent
limitations. ! i

I
I

Authorized EPA inspectors conducted inspections of Respondent's Facility on May 20,
2008 and JJne 17,2009 ("EPA Inspecti?ns"). i

bOUNT I fCWA - Unlawful Discharge of a Pollutants) 'I

I
I I

The allegati ns contained in paragraPhS., 1-24 are re-alleged and incorporaied by
reference. I I

, I
, I

During the !YIay 2008 inspection, the EPA inspector observed the discharge of
stormwater from roadways owned by CNX exiting a pipe entering Janney Run Creek.
The discharke was black, turbid and discolored the Creek. The EPA inspector collected
and analyzeiJ a sample of stormwater runoff entering Janney Run Creek. The sample
collected fr1m this pipe had a Total Suspended Solids (TSS) concentration

l

of99.0 mg/I.

Janney Run preek discharges to the Pat~psco River. i

Discharges from the pipe to Janney Run Creek are not authorized under th~ terms of the

CNX NPDE1S permit..
1

I

The discharge pipe to Janney Run is a "point source" which "discharged" "pollutants"
contained inl "storm water" as those terms are defined at Sections 502(16),(14) and (6) of
the Act, 33m.S.C. §§ 1362(16), (14) and (6), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(13),
respectivelyJ and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2, and at all times relevant to this Conse~t Agreement
and Final O~[der has "discharged" "pollutants" contained in storm water runoff to Janney
Run Creek. I !

: I
I I

Respondent's discharge of pollutants as referenced in Paragraph 26 violated Section 301
of the Act, 3 U.S.C. § 1311, and 40 C.~.R. § I 22.26(c)(I).

COUNT II CWA - Permit Effluent Limit Violations

The allegati ns contained in Paragraphs ,1-30 are re-alleged and incorporated by
, I

reference. i ;

I I

I

The CNX NPDES Permit authorizes Respondent to discharge storm water runoff from
outfall 002 Jithin certain emuent limitations including that TSS are no greater than 50
m~. i !

i I

At the time f the EPA inspection on May 20, 2008, an inspector obtained two storm

; I

4 i

I I

i I
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34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

water samp es of discharges from outfa I 002 and analyzed the samples fo~ TSS. The
analytical r,lsults showed TSS concentnl,tions of84 mg/! and 88 mg/I in the samples.

, I
The average TSS concentration of the two samples was 86 mg/l, which exceeds the
permitted likit of 50 mg/I.:, I

According tb a Facility Discharge Moni~oring Report prepared by CNX add dated July
28, 2008, th~ TSS concentration on that day for outfall 002 was 76 mg/I, which exceeds
the Permitter limit of 50 mg/I.! II

Respondentjs discharges of pollutants as referenced in paragraphs 33. 34, and 35
exceeded the permit effluent limitations contained in the CNX NPDES Pemit and
therefore, cdnstitute violations of the permit and Sections 301 and 402 of the CWA, 33

I , I

U.S.c. §§ n II and 1342. I I
I ' I

COUNT III (CWA - Failure to Provide Notice Of Permitted Outfall Closure)
I ' I

The allegati@nscontained in Paragraphs,I-36 are re-alleged and incorporat~d by
reference. I I

i :

At the time @fthe EPA inspection on May 20, 2008, an inspector observed
'
no discharge

from outfall 003 and was informed by aCNX employee that outfall 003 h~d been

plugged.: \

Storm water that previously would have 'passed through outfall 003 was nJw being
managed in a different manner than authorized by the Permit. i

I I
I !

This change to how the Facility handles its storm water is a process modification
requiring notification to MOE pursuant to section ILB.l of the CNX NPDES Permit.

As of the Mt 20, 2008 EPA's inspectio~,Respondent had not notified M~E of the
I , Iprocess modification. I,I I ,

Respondent'k failure to notify MOE ofthe process modification constituteJ a violation of
I ' ,

the CNX NPFES Permit and Sections 311 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 13111'

COUNT IV (RCRA SUBTITLE C - Flourecent Lamp Storage) I

I I!
The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1-42 ofthis CAFO are re-alleged and
incorporated by reference. I, I

Respondent i, and has been through the ~eriod of the violations alleged her~in, the
"owner" and "operator" of a "facility" as these terms are defined by COMAR

, I
26.13.01.03 " i, !

'I

I

I

\



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

5\.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Respondent is and has been through the period ofthe violations alleged herein, a
I

"generator" f, and has engaged in the "storage" of, materials that are "solid wastes" and
I

"hazardous raste" at the Facility as those tenns are defined in COMAR 26.13.0\.03B.

Respondent lis and, at all times relevant to the violations in this CAFO, hJ, been a
conditionally-exempt small-quantity generator of hazardous waste in an amount less than
100 kilognuhs per month at the Facility. • I
COMAR 26l13.1 0.15 provides in pertinent part that fluorescent waste lamps be kept in a
structurally sound container or package that is kept closed except when adding waste to
or removing waste from the container or package.

During the EPA Inspection on May 20, 2008, six open boxes of fluorescenr waste lamps
and sixteen ioose fluorecent waste lamps in the Maintenance Shop at the Facility were

::~~::~:~'r:~:;v~:::::s::::e~: ~ra~aa::::::t:;:h~Sa~::~~I:::~~, Relpondent

violated CO, AR 26.13.10.15 by failing to keep fluorescent waste lamps in a structurally
sound conta', er or package that is kept closed except when adding waste t6 or removing
waste from the container or package. . \

I 'I

COUNT V RCRA Subtitle C - Universal Waste Lam s Labelin \
i

The allegati~Scontained in Paragraphs I -49 of this CAFO are re-alleged clnd
incorporated bv reference. • i

COMAR 26.1~.10.17(A)(2)(e)requires each fluorescent waste lamp and JCh container
or package 0 fluorescent waste lamps be marked with "Universal Waste-Lkmp(s)",
"Waste Lam~(s)", or "Used Lamp(s)". . I
At the time o~the EPA inspection on May 20, 2008, the EPA inspectors obkerved an
unmarked bOlx of fluorescent waste lamps in the Maintenance Shop.

Based on the activities described in Paragraph 52 of this CAFO, above, Respondent
violated COiAR Section 26.13.1 0.17(A)(2)(e) by failing to mark fluoresc~ntwaste
lamps. . I

, i

COUNT VI (RCRA Subtitle C- Demonstrate Universal Waste Accumulation Time)

The allegatiohs contained in Paragraphs 1-53 of this CAFO are re-alleged aL

incorporated ~'y reference. I \

COMAR Sec ion 26.13.1 0.17(B)(3) requires a handler of universal waste such as
fluorescent w ste lamps be able to demonstrate the length of time that the universal waste

i
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56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

has been aCl!UIDulated from the date it b~came a waste and make the demohstration by
\ ' I

marking or labeling the universal waste, utilizing an appropriate inventory I system or
another method that clearly demonstrat~s this length of time. I

I I.
At the time bf the EPA inspection on May 20, 2008, the EPA inspectors were unable to
obtain the 11'ngth of time that the contents of seven boxes of fluorescent w~ste lamps,
which listed no accumulation start date. II . I

Based on th· activities described in Paragraph 56 of this CAFO, above. Respondent, ,

violated COttAR Section 26.13.1 0.17(B)(3), by failing to demonstrate the accumulation
time for fluJrescent waste lamps. 'I I,

I I

COUNT ., II (RCRA Subtitle I - Operation and Maintenance of Release Detection
and Vapor Monitoring System) I'

I .

The allegati.,ns contained in Paragraphs Ii I-57 of this CAFO are re-alleged \lnd
incorporate~bY reference. I . I

I .. I

Respondent I's a "person" as defined by ~ections 1004(15) and 900 I(5) of ~CRA, 42
U.S.c. §§ 6

f
3(15) and 6991(5), and as ,defined by COMAR 26.10.02.04 and

26.13.01.03. . 'I '. I

Respondent. s, and was at all times releJant hereto, the "owner" and "operitor" of an
UndergroUn~ storage tank ('"UST") as defined in COMAR 26.10.02.04 and: Section
9001(3), (4)1 and (10) of RCRA, 42 U'Sf § 6991(3), (4), and (10), at the facility.

The UST at the Facility is a 2,000 gallon reinforced fIberglass fuel storage Itank that is
located unde![ a concrete pad just south of the C-I tunnel building ("UST").

I . I

The UST wa at all times relevant heretJ, a "petroleum UST system" used to store
"regulated s Ibstances" as defined in COMAR 26.10.02.04 and a "petrolewh" "UST"
used to store "regulated substances" as defined in Section 9001 (I), (2) and ·1'(8) of RCRA,
42 U.S.c. § .991(1), (2) and (8). I I

I . I

COMAR 26.l0.05.01(A) requires that the owner and/or operator of petroleum UST
,

systems mus have release detection systems that are installed, calibrated, qperated, and
maintained ih accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, including routine
maintenance and service checks for operability or running condition. :

I . I

A vapor monitoring release detection sy~tem for the UST was located at th~ Facility at
the time ofttle June 17,2009 inspection. I I

~OMAR 26l 0.05.04(F)(3) re~uires the. US~ vapor monitoring sys.tem not pe rendered
moperahve b, groundwater, ramfall, sOli· mOlsture or other known mterferences so that a

I • II

i I
I I

I I
I



66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

\

I

release coul go undetected for more than thirty (30) days.
! '

Emco Whe ton, the manufacturer ofthe vapor monitoring system at the Facility,
published irlstructions for the installatioh, operation and maintenance of the system
entitled Em/tO Wheaton Ins/alia/ion, Operation and Maintenance Leak Se~sor Jr.
Und:r~ou1d Leak Warning System ("Manual"). Acc?rding to the Manu~,l, the .
momtonng }"ell vapor sensors should be one foot (12 Inches) above the highest Icvel ot
the water table or as high as necessary to eliminate the possibility of the sensor being
under water! The Manual further recom,mends that a preventative mainteJf\nce schedule

be perfonnt annually. \ '. \

At the time of the June 17,2009 EPA inspection, the A1 sensor was only 2.6 inches from
the ground1ater and the B2 sensor was only 9.2 inches from the groundw~ter instead of
the recommended one foot (12 inches) above the highest level of the watq table or as
high as necebary to eliminate the possibility of the sensor being under water, In
addition, noke of the monitoring wells were grouted or sealed to prevent t~e intrusion of

surface runo(f. \ \

Respondent riOlated COMAR 26.1 0.05.0 I(A) and COMAR 26.1 0.05.04(F)(3)
by failing to operate and maintain the release detection system in accordant,e with the
Manual. I I

I I
Count VIII (RCRA Subtitle I - Line Tigbtness Test Or Use Prope~ Monthly

Monitoring Method) I

1 I, ,

The allegati ns contained in Paragraphs 11-68 ofthis CAFO are re-alleged and
incorporated by reference. II " \

I ' 1

COMAR 26.1 0.05.02(C)(3) requires that underground suction piping eithe~ have a line
tightness tes I at least every three (3) years or use a monthly monitoring method,

, I

conducted in accordance with the COMAR, unless it meets an exemption that requires,
among other things, the proper placemen~ of a check valve. I

At the time I the EPA inspection on Junle 17,2009, an inspector did not oJserve the
required che9k valve and no records of tightness tcsting or monthly monitoring was
available at the Facility. Facility personnel stated that no leak detection method was in
place for the biping. I I
Respondent ~iolated COMAR 26.10.05.02(C)(3) by failing to have a checklvalve in
place, or to chnduct tightness testing or monthly monitoring. I

CIVIL P~NALTY I
I I

Respondent consents to the assessment 0i' a civil penalty of thirty-four thouland six

8
I
I
I
!



74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

i :
hundred dollars ($34,600.00) in full satisfaction of all claims for civil pen~lties for the
violations aiIeged in the above alleged three counts of this CAFO. Respottdent must pay
the civil perlaltv no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the effective date.

I - I I
For the cwk violations alleged in Counts I - Ill, EPA considered the statJtory factors set
forth in Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 ;U.S.c. § 13I9(g), including the n~ture,
circumstancfs, extent and gravity ofthe',violation(s), Respondent's ability Ito pay, prior
history of c~mpliance,degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings resulting from
the violations, and such other matters asjustice may require.I . I '
For the RCM Subtitle C violations alleged in Counts IV - VI, EPA considered the
statutory fa9tors set forth in Section 3008(a)(3) of the RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § :6928(a)(3),
including the seriousness of Respondent,'s violations and the Respondent's good faith
efforts to colnply with the applicable RCRA requirements.

For the RcL Subtitle I violations alleJed in Counts VII and VIII, EPA considered the
statutory fadfors including the seriousne~s of Respondent's violations and ~ny good faith
efforts by R~spondent to comply with all applicable requirements as provided in RCRA
Section 900(,)(c), 42 U.S.c. § 6991e(c). \ i \

For the RC~ Subtitles C and I violatiops alleged in Counts IV - VlII, EPA also ,
considered BPA's October, 1990 RCRA, Civil Penalty Policy, as revised in: June, 2003
("RCRA Perlalty Policy"), which reflect the statutory penalty criteria and factors set forth
at Section 3d08(a)(3) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6928(a)(3) and (g), the appropriate
Adjustment hf Civil Monetary Penalties 'ror Inflation, pursuant to 40 C.F.R1

. Part 19, the
September 2h, 2004 memorandum by Acting EPA Assistant Administrator', Thomas V.
Skinner, enti~led Modifications to EPA Penalty Policies to Implement the Civil Monetary
Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule ("Skinner Memorandum") and the Dece'mber 29, 2008
memoranduJh by EPA Assistant Administrator Granta Y. Nakayama, entitl~d
Amendment~ to EPA's Civil Penalty Policies to Implement the 2008 Civil Monetary
Penalty Tnfla~ion Adjustment Rule (Effc~tivc January 12,2009) ("Nakayan)a
Memorandutp"). Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 19, and as further provided in the Skinner
Memorandum, penalties for RCRA violations occurring after March 15,2004 and up to
January 12,2009 have been increased by: an additional 17.23% to account ~or subsequent
inflation, no~to exceed a $32,500.00 per violation statutory maximum pena,lty. Pursuant

, ,

to 73 Fed. R ,g. 75340-46 (Dec. I I, 2008), and as further proviueu in the N~kayama
Memorandurh, penalties for RCRA violations occurring after January 12, 2009 have been
increased by rn additional 9.83% to accohnt for subsequent intlation, not tei

l

exceed a
$37,500.00 prr violation statutory maxirrjum penalty.

I '
Payment oft~e civil penalty amount requ,ired under the tcrms of Paragraph 68, above,
shall be made by either cashier's check, certified check or electronic wire tr~nsfer, in the
following maimer: \ : \

,,
I
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a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

I

I
All wayments by Respondent shall reference its name and address ~nd the Docket

Ib f h" I INum er a t IS achon; i I

A111""" ,hID' '" =d, ","blf " "Un"'" 8<• .., TN~nry," !

All payments made by check and sent by regular mail shall be addresscd and
mailFd to: \ i

U.s·IEnvironmental Protection1gency
Fine~ and Penalties 'I

Cincinnati Finance Center I
P.O.IBox 979077 I

St. Lbuis, MO 63197-9000 i

contet: Eric Valek at 513-487-2105.

All P1ayments made by check and sent by overnight delivery servicl shall be
addressed for delivery to: !

U.S.~PA I

Fines & Penalties i
1005 Convention Plaza i
Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL I I
St. Louis, MO 63101 I . 1

Contkct: Eric Valek at 513-487-2105.

l I I

All PI yments made by check in ~ny currency drawn on banks with rio USA
bran[heS shall be addressed for delivery to:' I

Cinci, ati Finance (I I
US EPA, MS-NWD I
26 "J. M.L. King Drive I I

Cincirati, OH 45268-0001 I •

All payments made by electronic \wire transfer shall be directed to:

FedJEI Reserve Bank of New ydrk
ABA = 021030004 I
Acco; t=68010727 . i
SWI~T address = FRNYUS33 I

33 Liberty Street I I
New york, NY 10045 I '
Field ~ag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Environmental
Prate' tion Agency" I

I

11
I



and to

g.

h.

I.

J.

. I

All electronic payments made through the Automated Clearinghouse (ACH), alsokn0r as Remittance Express (jX), shall be directed to: I

US Treasury REXICashlink ACH Receiver
ARt- = 051036706 I
Acc([Junt No.: 310006, Environrriental Protection Agency
eTN Fonnat Transaction Code 22 - Checking

PhY~iCallocation of U.S. TreasJy Facility:
5700 Rivertech Court I .

Riverdale, MD 20737 I .
contc!: Jesse White at 301-887i6548, or REX at 1-866-234-5681'1

on-Irne payment option availabl~ through the Department of the Tieasury.
I .

WWIW.PAY.GOV I

I I'

Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field ~nd complete all required fields in ihe fonn.
Add"1!tiona1 payment guidance is available at:, I

http: !www.epa.gov!ocfo!finservlces!make_a-lJayment.htm I
At the same time that any payme~t is made, Respondent shall mail bOPies of any
corre~ponding check, or written notification confinning any electronic wire
transler, to: I ! I

Ms. Lydia Guy I \
Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) 1

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region III I
1650 Arch Street ,
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

I

I
I

Judith R. Hykel (3RC60) I
U.S. Environmental Proteption Agency, Region III
1650 Arch Street 'I

Philadelphia, PA 191 03-2i29 I

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is entitled to ass~ss interest on
outstanding debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the costslof processing
and handling[a delinquent claim, as more: fully described below. Accordingly,
Respondent's failure to make timely payment by the final due date or to comply with theI I

111

I,
!

79.



80.

81.

82.

83.

conditions 'n this CAFO shall result in the assessment of late payment charges, including
interest, peJalties, and/or administrativ~ costs of handling delinquent debts.

Interest on Jhe civil penalty assessed in 'ihiS CAFO will begin to accrue oJ the date that a
copy of thiJ CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. However,l EPA will not
scek to rec~ver interest on any amount .bfthe ci~il penalty that is paid no l,ater than t?irty
(30) calendar days after the date on which such mterest begms to accrue. ,Interest will be
assessed at lhe rate of the United Statesl'Treasury tax and loan rate in acco~dancc with 40
C.F.R. § nil I(a).

!

EFFECT OF SETTLEMENT

Payment of he penalty specified in Parlgraph 73, above. in the manner s~r forth in
Paragraph 71 above, shall constitute full and final satisfaction of all civil daims for
penalties w~ich Complainant may have 'under the CWA and RCRA for thJ specific
violations alleged in Counts I - VIII, ab,;>Ve. Compliance with this CAFO Ishall not be a
defense to ahy action commenced at any time for any other violation of thi: federal laws

and regUlatil' ns administered by EPA. I " !

RESERVATI?N OF RIGHTS II

This CAFO resolves only the civil clainis for monetary penalties for the specific
violations aJ,leged in this CAFO. EPA reserves the right to commence action against any
person, incl~ding Respondent, in respon'se to any condition which EPA delennines may
present an irhminent and substantial endkngerment to the public health, pu~lic welfare, or
the environAent. In addition, this settlel,nent is subject to all limitations on the scope of
resolution aJd to the reservation of rights set forth in Section 22.18(c) oftlle
ConsolidateJJ Rules of Practice. Further; EPA reserves any rights and remedies available
to it under tHe cwA, RCRA, the regulat'ions promulgated under the CWA land RCRA,

I ' I

and any othelr federal laws or regulations for which EPA has jurisdiction, to enforce the
, ,

provisions of this CAFO, following its filing wilh the Regional Hearing Cl'erk.
Respondent ~eserves all available rights ~nd defenses it may have to defend itself in any
such action. I!!

! I
FULL AND FINAL SATISFACTION

I

This CAFO €Onstitutes a settlement by SPA of all claims for civil penaltie~ pursuant to
Section 309 hfthe CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 13;19, and Sections 3008 and 9006 of RCRA, 42
V.S.c. §§ 6*8 and 6991e, for the speci(Jc violations alleged in this CAFd.. This CAFO
constitutes tHe entire agreement and und~rstanding of the parties regarding Isettlement of
all claims pehaining to specific violation:s alleged herein, and there are no I
representatiohs, warranties, covenants, tt:rn1s, or conditions agreed upon between the
parties other Ihan those expressed in this 'CAFO. ,

12
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ch'ristopher T. Marsh
V· I P'd IIce reSI ent I

I

I

AUTHORITY TO BIND THE PARTIES

; 'I i

83. The undersigned representative ofRespondent certifies tliat he or she is fli ly authorized
by the Resppndent to enter into th~ temis and conditions of this Consent Agreement and
to bind the espondent to it. i I

, EFFECTIVE DATE .
. • I

• . 1 I I

84. Pursuant to 0 C.F.R. § 22.45, this' CA10 shall be issued ~fter a 40-day public notice
period for !lie CWA violations in Counts I-III has concluded. This CAFOlwill become
final thirty ~O) days after issuance', 33 ili.s.c. § l3l9(g)(4), and will become effective on
that same d te, 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b). I

I
I

For Respondent: CNX Marine Terminals, Inc.

I

5/t/;~
Date
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IAccordingl , I hereby recommend that the Regional Administrator or his designee, the
Regional Judicial Officer, issue the Final Order 'attached hereto. I

. I
I ,

!

For Complainant:

(:, /slId.
Date

I

I

I I

U .~S. Environmental Protection Agericy,
Region III

I

~grMj\ful1R.HYk1. I
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA - Region III

I .

I

~

r2!!£:::;""Office of Enforcement, Compliance, and
Environmental Justice !

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region III
I

I

I

!

I



CNX Marine Termi, als, Inc.,

3800 New Gate Avenue
Baltimore, Mary1antl, 21224,
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION'IAGENCY
REGION III

1650 A~ch Street I

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029 I
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FINAL ORDER

Facility.

Respondent

BEFORETH'
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Docket No. RCRA/CWA-03-2~156-
I :»""

I

, I

Complainant, the Director of the Office of Enforcement, Compliance, and Environmental
Justice, U.S. Envirohmental Protection Agency,'Region Ill, and Respondent, CN~ Marine
Terminals, Inc., havf executed a document entitled "Consent Agreement," which I hereby ratify
as a Consent Agreement in accordance with the 'Consolidated Rules of Practice G6verning the
Administrative Assclssment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of
Permits ("Consolidcited Rules of Practice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22, with specific refere~ce to Sections

I , I

22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3). The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement 'are accepted
by the undersigned fd incorporated into this Final Order as iffully set forth at lerigth herein.

L I . I
Based on th9 representations of the parties set forth in the Consent Agreem~nt, I have

determined that the penalty assessed herein is based upon a consideration of the factors set forth
in Section 309(g) oftthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319\g), S~~tions 3008(a) and 9006(c)11 of the
Resource conservali1on and Recovery Act, 42 U,S.c. §§ 6928(a) and 699Ie(c) I

I '

IT IS HERIEBY ORDERED that Respondent pay a penalty ofthirty-foJ thousand six
I ' I,

hundred dollars ($34,600.00) in accordance with the foregoing Consent Agreement. Payment
shall be made in thelmanner set forth in the foregoing Consent Agreement. Paym~nt shall
reference Respondent's name and address as well as the EPA Docket Number oftl1is Final Order
(Docket No. RCRA) WA-03-2012-0156). II II

I I

I

IN RE:



The effecti'le date of the foregoing Consent Agreement and this Final Ord'er is thirty days
after the public notice period has concluded.

JUN 18 2012
Date Shawn P. Garvin I

R~gional Administrato I
Environmental P otection Agency, Region III

I


